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Saturday, July 11, 1908.
When a Cohoes man dies of
apparently natural causes
after trying to kill himself in a
city jail cell this morning, The
Record calls it suicide any-
way.

Frank LaMotte, a laborer
who lives at 22 Orchard St.,
was arrested last night after
his wife complained to police
about his behavior during an
apparent drunken binge. The
31-year-old man is examined
by Dr. William Curtin early
this morning. After the exam-
ination, LaMotte appears to
go berserk. - :

Raging in his cell, LaMotte
repeatedly “tried to dash his
brains out by knocking his
head against the iron bars,”
our reporter explains. A guard
rushes to bring back Dr.

- Curtin, but by the time they
| return to the cell, LaMotte is
~on the floor, a foot caught
between the bars.

The doctor determines that
LaMotte had died of a heart
attack brought on by alco-
holism and extreme excite-
ment. Insofar as his rampage
inside the cell brought on the
‘heart attack, he could be said
to have killed himself after all.

BODY IN POND.
Investigators are trying to
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determine the identity of a
woman whose badly decom-
posed body is found in a Sand
Lake pond this afternoon, our
paper reports.

Gilbert Miller discovers the
body while driving a carriage
past a pond on Conrad Teal’s
farm. “Teal’s pond is located in
a very lonesome and secluded
part of the town of Sand
Lake,” our writer notes, “It is
on the road between Sand
Lake and Tarborton, and sur-
rounding the small body of
water is a piece of woods fre-
quented sometimes by squirrel
hunters.

“Mr. Miller saw an object in
the water, some distance from
the brink, the day before, but
was at too great a distance to
recognize it as the body of a
human being. When he next
saw it it had drifted to the
shore of the pond.

“The pond is not a very
large one, but is of consider-
able depth and furnishes
water to operate a small mill
owned by Mr. Teal. Mr Miller
carried news of the tragic dis-
covery to Sand Lake, which is
about four miles east from the
pond, and word was sent at
once to Coroner Strope.”

Investigators " find a
woman’s hat and gloves on a

bank about 20 feet from the
pond. There are no signs of a
struggle at the site, suggesting
that the woman may have
removed them before entering
the pond, possibly to kill her-
self. An autopsy tomorrow is
expected to determine the
actual cause of her death.
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drowned, but that she died

committed and the condition

Sunday, July 12, 1908. An
autopsy has determined that
the woman whose body was
found in a Sand Lake pond
yesterday afternoon was mur-
dered, The Record reports.

The badly decomposed
body was found on the farm
property of Conrad Teal,
along with a hat and a pair of
gloves on a nearby barik.

The lack of signs of strug-
gle led to some initial specu-
lation that the as-yet unidenti-
fied woman had Kkilled her-
self.

The body is taken to the
Larkin Brothers undertaking
parlor in Averill Park, where
Dr. H.O. Fairweather of Troy
and two Sand Lake physicians
perform the autopsy.

“The doctors declare that
the young woman was not

from concussion of the
brain,” our reporter notes,
“the result of a blow with a
blunt weapon on the back of
the head.

“After being struck down in
this cowardly and brutal way
the victim of the assault was
evidently carried to the pond
and thrown in, her hat and
gloves being left near by to
convey the belief that she had
discarded them and commit-
ted suicide.”

In early 20th century crime
reporting, “assault” is often a
euphemism for rape, but
investigators remain uncer-
tain of whether the victim
“had been assaulted before
being given her death blow.”

They note, however, that “it
may be that such an act was

of the remains after being so
long in the water would make
it impossible to determine the
truth.”

Given the condition of the
body, the woman’s clothes
may be the best clue to her
identity.

These are being taken to
Troy, where they may help
resolve a missing person case.
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Monday, July 13, 1908. The
murder victim whose body
was found in a Sand Lake pond
last Saturday has been ‘identi-
fied as 20 year old Hazel I
Drew of - Troy, The Record
TepOris. < & = S

Drew’s family identifies
clothes taken from the body
this morning, while her father,
John Drew of 400 Fourth
Street, travels to the Larkin

' Bros. undertaking parlor in

Averill Park to identify the
body. Despite the body’s.
advanced decomposition, the
elder Drew “did not hesitate in
declaring it to be that of his
daughter,” our reporter writes.

Hazel Drew was last seen
alive on July 6, the day she left
her job as a domestic servant
to Professor E. R. Cary of
Whitman Place. While her

| trunk was sent to her parents’

house, Drew visited her aunt,
Minnie Taylor, who works as a_

- servant for the Harrison family

on Pawling Avenue. Taylor
tells investigators that Drew
was planning to go to
Watervliet later that day. She
last saw Drew boarding a
streetcar outside the Harrison

house.

“How she got to Sand Lake,
or whether she was alive when
taken there, is part of the
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unraveled story of her death,”
our writer notes; “It is said,
however, that she may have
had friends or acquaintances
in the neighborhood, as her
father - was at one: time
employed near Averill Park.”

~Investigators from the dis-
trict attorney’s office learn

_ later today that Drew’s uncle,

William Taylor, lives near
Conrad Teal’s pond in Sand
Lake where Drew’s body was
found. Drew’s mother tells the
investigators this morning that
Hazel frequently visited the
area, but our reporter notes
that Mrs. Drew didn’t mention
the fact that her brother lives
in the vicinity.

“If it prove that there is an
uncle residing in the vicinity
the police may learn if the girl
called there after she left the
Harrison place, going to the
Park instead of Watervliet,”
our writer elaborates, “The
aunt says that she saw Hazel
take the car for Watervliet, but
this does not assure the detec-
tives that she went over the
river.

“It is thought possible that
she may have changed her
mind and decided to visit Sand
Lake. Details multiply rapidly
regarding the crime, but the
authorities are  cpnfident that,

they will learn something of
her journey later than at the
period when she was last seen
by her aunt.”

- The authorities are already
learning - more about Hazel
Drew. “Deceased is highly spo-
ken of by those who employed
her and by her acquaintances,”
our paper reports, “They all
say she was a quiet and steady
young woman and was never
known to have any compro-
mising friendships.”

Drew worked as a domestic
from the age of fourteen.
“Several prominent families”
have employed her since then.
They report that “She did her
work properly and as far as
she is known her habits were
discreet. She dressed neatly
and made friends.”

District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien’s team is “making the
most earnest and searching
efforts to discover a motive for
the crime and to run the mur-
derer down. Both motive and
murderer are still hidden, how-
ever, and nothing known in
the young woman’s life, nor
any intimation given by her to
relatives, helps unravel the
mystery surrounding her tragic
death.”

— Kevin Gilbert
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Tuesday, July 14, 1908.
Hazel Drew is buried today as
investigators learn more about
her movements on the last
day anyone saw her alive, The
Record reports.

Drew, a 20-year-old domes-
tic servant, is laid to rest
three days after her body was
found in Teal’s Pond in Sand
Lake. Investigators believe
that she was killed on or
around July 6 by a blow to
the head, after which her
body was dumped in the
pond. Her hat and gloves
were left neatly nearby,
allegedly to create the impres-
sion that Drew had drowned
by accident or suicide.

After an abrupt change of
plans, Drew’s family buries
her at the Barbersvillé .

_since a three-week visi
' Winter, Socmﬁww Wm,

Cemetery in Poestenkill near
her birthplace, with Rev.

J.H.E. Rickard of Third Street .

Methodist Church officiating.
The Drews had ordered a
grave dug for Hazel in their
family plot at Mt. Ida ceme-
tery before deciding on the
Poestenkill funeral.

Drew’s uncle, William
Taylor of Sand Lake, only
learned of the change from
reporters who visited him this
morning. He lives near Teal’s
Pond and was briefly a person
of interest in the investiga-
tion, if only because they the-
orized that Drew had gone to
Sand Lake to visit him.

He tells our reporter today
that he hasn’t seen Hazel

then that she planned to
return.

Since last evening’s edition
went to press, the investiga-
tion has focused on two men
who claim to have seen Drew
on the road to her uncle’s
house on the evening of June
6.

William Gundrum and
Frank Smith say they saw her
on “the hollow, a depression
in the main road just west of
the highway leading to the
Taylor farm,” our reporter
explains.

Previously, the last person
known to have seen Drew alive
was her aunt, Minnie Taylor.
She told investigators that
Drew visited her on the morn-
ing of July 6, the day Drew left

+'the employ of Prof. E.R. Cary."

According to Taylor, Drew
planned to go to Watervliet,
and boarded a streetcar for that
destination on Pawling )
Avenue. -
District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien’s team doesn’t consider

either Gundrum or Smith a sus-

pect in Drew’s death. Because
the two men corroborated each
other in separate interviews,
and Gundrum was unaware
that investigators had already
spoken with Smith, “this dis-
pelled all thought of his being
implicated.” Gundrum is a 35-
year-old farmer and charcoal
burner, while the 17-year-old
Smith “is said to be rather
weak mentally.”

A report of a previous attack
near Teal’s Pond raises the pos-
sibility that a serial attacker

killed Drew.

Bertha Neustiel, who lives
near Crape’s Hotel on the road
to East Poestenkill, was
allegedly attacked by two men,
but fought them off. Neustil
did not report the attack to
police before today “on
account of her desire to avoid
publicity.”

The investigators intend to
drain Teal’s Pond tomorrow. “It
is thought that the bed of the
little body of water may dis-
close some fact that will assist
in the mystery,” our writer
notes, “Its revelations may
help, but the officers are only
acting so that every effort may
be exercised which might offer
some clue to the murder, if

murder it proves to-be.”
© Lk Kevin Gilbert
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Wednesday, July 15, 1908.
Investigators drain Teal’s Pond
in Sand Lake today, hoping to
find: clues to the fate of Hazel
Drew, whose body was found
in the pond last Saturday, The
Record reports.

Drew, a 20 year old Troy res-
ident, was last seen alive on
July 6, the day she left the
employ of Prof. E.R. Cary.

She is believed to have been
killed by a blow to the head
before being dumped in the
pond. £

Her Kkiller or Kkillers then
apparently arranged some of
her clothes nearby: to make it
appear that Drew drowned
herself.

Approaching Teal’s Pond,
“the mountain road is blocked
.with every kind of a con-
veyance known - automobiles
of all grades line the highway
which is narrow, and farm

- Wagons and high priced city
' vehicles, runabouts and sur-
| Teys make up the picture,” our
l’ reporter writes, “Women and
men from the city visiting in
the vicinity and residents
throng the north shore of the
pond, which is only a step
from the road.”

The curious crowd at the
pond is disappointed when

“Nothing belonging to the girl

or which could be connected
with the crime was found.”

The investigators from the
district attorney’s office were
hoping to find Drew’s suit-
case, which she carried on
board a Pawling Avenue
Streetcar on the afternoon of
July 6. :

What became of the suitcase
is significant because the last
two people who claim to have
seen Drew alive later that day
say that she wasn’t carrying a
suitcase when they saw her on
a Sand Lake road.

Where she left the suitcase
could prove a crucial clue to
her apparent change of desti-
nation from Watervliet to Sand
Lake.

One of the people who saw
Drew in Sand Lake is 17 year
old Frank Smith.

Suspicion focuses anew on
him when investigators learn
that he had run into the village
center and tried to enter a
pharmacy on the night of July
6

While subsequent inquiries
reveal that Smith was running
an errand for a guest at
Crape’s Hotel, District
Attorney Jarvis P. O’Brien still
clearly considers the “weak
minded” youth a person of
interest.

“So far, Smith comes in clos-
est touch of any one we have
spoken to with Hazel just
before her death,” O’Brien tells
our reporter, “I do not say he
has knowledge of the way she
met death, but I do say his
conduct has been, to say the
least, very peculiar.

“From what we learn the
girl was evidently on his
mind.

“He told his mother he met
her, and he told Frank
Richmond [a Sand Lake resi-
dent] he met her, and that
was before her body was
found.

“It now transpires that he
helped take her body from the
pond, yet he never said a word
about it being Hazel’s.

“He did not tell us when we
were out there Saturday that
he thought the body was
Hazel’s, and never said any-
thing to that effect until the
following Monday.

“All will be probed deeply. I
am not accusing Smith and it
may be he does not know
more than he tells, but ... he
is a deep one in some
respects and guards  his
answers with what may be
called cunning.”

— Kevin Gilbert




Thursday, July 16, 1908.
Sheriff J. Irving Baucus has
offered a $1,000 reward for
information leading to the
arrest of Hazel Drew’s murder-
er, The Record reports, but as
more clues emerge the case
grows only more mysterious.

Drew’s body was fond in
Teal’s Pond in Sand Lake last
Saturday, July 11. An autopsy
revealed that Drew was Killed
by a blow to the head before
her body was dumped into the
pond in an apparent attempt to
make her death look accidental
or self-inflicted.

An important clue emerged
after last evening’s paper went
to press, when County
Detective Duncan C. Kaye
found Drew’s suitcase at Troy’s
Union Station.

Drew’s cousin, Minnie Taylor,
reported that Drew was carry-
ing the suitcase when she
boarded a Pawling Avenue
streetcar for Watervliet on the
afternoon of July 6. On July 7
Frank Smith and Rudolph
Gunderman reportedly saw her
walking along a Sand Lake road
without the suitcase. Detective
Kaye has learned that Drew was
in downtown Troy on the after-
noon of the 7th and left her
| suitcase with parcel clerk

Adelbert Atwood.

Following that news, witness-
es have come forward to claim
that they saw Drew downtown
that afternoon. Thomas Carey,
who claims to know Drew by
sight, tells investigators that he
saw her carrying her suitcase
on Congress Street between
Fourth and Fifth streets near
noon that day. :

A search of the suitcase
reveals that a shirt waist known
to belong to Drew is missing.
Detectives suspect that Drew
must have left it wherever she
stayed on the night of July 6,
but where exactly she stayed is
still unknown.

Despite Minnie Taylor’s claim
that Drew was headed for
Watervliet, investigators now
suspect that Drew went to
Albany instead, possibly in
Taylor’s company. District
Attorney Jarvis P. O’Brien is in
Albany today personally leading
the investigation of that lead.

At the Drew home in South
Troy, Hazel’s mother shows
reporters a postcard addressed
to Hazel that had arrived last
Monday at the home of Hazel’s
former employer, Professor E.
R. Cary. Sent from New
Carlisle, Ohio, it’s signed

+ [‘Carrie Weaver,” informing

Hazel that Weaver had been
“out riding” and “having a
lovely time.”

Investigators hope that estab-
lishing contact with Carrie
Weaver, whom they assume to
be a close friend of Drew, will
give them more hints as to
Drew’s possible whereabouts
on the night of the 6th-and her
likely destination when last
seen in Sand Lake on the 7th.

Summarizing developments,
assistant D.A. Chester Wager
tells reporters, “We know but
little more than has been pub-
lished. :

“There are a few things it
would not be judicious to tell at
this time. They may materialize
into importance and the [pre-
mature?] publication of them
would serve only to embarrass
the earnest work we are doing.

“This office has been render-
ing all aid in its power to dis-
cover the perpetrator of the
murder and we are working
along the lines of latest light. I
candidly admit, however, that
the light is not strong and the
secret of the poor girl’s death is
still hidden. But it often hap-
pens in a case like this that a
very simple thing will turn the
search in the right direction.”

, — Keuvin Gilbert
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Friday, July 17, 1908. How
did Hazel Drew die? In the
absence of any plausible mur-
der suspect, investigators are
turning to alternate theories of
how the Troy woman met her
end.

Drew’s decomposed body
was pulled from Teal’s Pond in
Sand Lake last Saturday. An
autopsy determined that she
died from a blow to the head,
leading detectives to speculate
that her body was dumped into
the pond to make it look like

she Kkilled herself or drowned

by accident.

The nearest thing there is to .

a suspect, as far as the public
knows, is Frank Smith, one of
two men who were apparently
the last to see Drew alive. They
saw her in Sand Lake on the
evening of July 7, and the 19
year old Smith apparently
knew her on sight. Why, then,
didn’t he recognize Drew’s
body when he helped pull her
from the pond on July 117

“I say it is very peculiar that
Smith acted in this way,” says
district attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien. Despite his suspi-
cions, Q’Brien has no plan to
issue an arrest warrant at this
time. His first priority is to
hold a corner’s inquest some-
time next week - later than he

should have, according to crit-
ics. ;

Lacking a real case against
Smith, some investigators are
beginning to wonder if Drew
was murdered at all.

“I do not think it impossible
and, perhaps, improbable that
Hazel Drew committed sui-
cide,” an anonymous official
tells our reporter.

“This theory of mine is sub-
stantiated by the fact that the
girl was out of employment,
out of money, and had few
friends. - Walking along the
dusty road on that hot evening,
one of the warmest of the sum-
mer, she may have become
despondent and drowned her-
self upon reaching the pond
near her uncle’s home.”

Drew received her last pay-
check for $4.50 from Professor
E. R. Cary on July 4. Based on
information from her aunt
Minnie Taylor, investigators
believe that she had spent

-most of it by the time she

reached .Sand Lake on July 7.
She had one nickel on her per-
son when her body was found.

The doctors who performed
Drew’s autopsy insist that she
could not have sustained the
head injury they found by
drowning or by hitting her
head on a stone. The investiga-

" other’s

tor, however, suggests that the
body’s advanced state of
decomposition made it impos-
sible to. say definitely whether
Drew died by violence or acci-
dent.

Drew may have been
despondent over the departure
of Carrie Weaver, one of her
supposedly few friends,. for a
vacation in Ohio on July 6.
They spent the Memorial Day
weekend in New York City
together, according to Mrs. A.
M. Green, who- employs
Weaver as a domestic.

Mrs. Green notes that “the
girls were not known to have
young men callers, but spent
much of their time in each
company.” Drew’s
brother Joseph adds that Hazel
“had no sweetheart that I
know of and preferred rather
the company of girls.”

Another theory under con-
sideration is that Drew was
run down by an automobile.
According to this scenario, a
“reckless chauffeur” then
dumped Drew’s body in the
pond “rather than face the con-
sequences,” and arranged her
hat and gloves to hint at sui-
cide.

— Kevin Gilbert
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Saturday, July 18, 1908. One
week after Hazel Drew’s body
was pulled from a Sand Lake
pond, investigators are still try-
ing to piece together what they
believe were the last two days
of her life, The Record reports.

An autopsy determined that
the 20 year old Drew, a recent-
ly unemployed dornestic ser-
vant, had been killed by a blow

"to the back of her head before
she was dumped in Teal’s
Pond.

"While her body was badly
decomposed by July 11, detec-
tives remain uncertain of exact-
ly when she-was killed.

The key to the mystery
seems to be whether Drew had
any male companion at the
time of her death.

Reports as of yesterday sug-
gested that she largely shunned
the company of men, but her
father, John Drew, disclosed
that she had been engaged to
an unidentified man two years

ago. J
After the man left her for
another woman, Drew

acknowledges, “Hazel had had
very little to do with men.”

A Snyder’s Lake man may
have seen Drew in male com-
pany on the afternoon of July
7. Peter Cipperly recalls seeing
a man and woman on a trolley

ERA

leaving Albia at 3 p.m:

He was most impressed by
the man’s peculiar features: a
long, thin face, a long nose and
a distinctive receding forehead.

Shortly after Drew’s body
was found, investigators
expressed interest in someone
with features matching the
man Cipperly saw.

Cipperly says he could iden-
tify the man in a line-up, but
he’s less certain that the
woman accompanying the man
was Hazel Drew.

“While he said he thought
there was a resemblance in the
face to the murdered girl, he
would not be positive,” our
reporter notes.

District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien explains Cipperly’s dif-
ficulty by noting that investiga-
tors are working with four year
old photographs that don’t
reflect Drew’s more recent
hairstyle and fashions.

Meanwhile, witnesses have

- reported seeing Drew at Union

Station late in the morning of
July 6 and on the Taborton
road in Sand Lake on the night
of July 7.

Mr. and Mrs. Henry Rollman
of Bear’s Head may be the last
people to see Drew alive. They
recall seeing a well-dressed girl
with a- plumed hat who

“should not be alone on the
road at that hour.” While the
Rollmans' worried about an
unchaperoned young woman
in a territory filled with
campers, they left her picking
raspberries by the roadside,
apparently without speaking to
her.

‘In addition, O’Brien’s office
has received numerous unso-
licited letters, some of them
anonymous, offering tips in the
case.

“Some give names of those
whom it is said may know
something about the case,” our
reporter explains, but none
suggest “that Hazel had a real
love affair.”

Carrie Weaver, a close friend

of Drew’s who left Troy for an

Ohio vacation on July 6, has
written that “I am at sea as to
the cause of her disappear-
ance,” informing Trojans that
“as far as [ know Hazel did not
associate with any men, and I
think if she had I would have
known it.”

As our evening edition goes
to press, a reporter concludes
with dubious confidence that
“the detectives seem to be clos-
ing in on a trail long lost” in
their hunt for Drew’s killer.

-- Kevin Gilbert




Sunday, July 19, 1908. If
investigators haven’t gotten all
the information they could
from the banks of the pond
where Hazel Drew’s body was

found last week, they probably

won’t find anything more after
today, The Record reports.

Drew, a former domestic ser-
vant, was most likely killed on
the night of July 7 or shortly
afterward. Her body was
pulled from Teal’s Pond in
Sand Lake on July 11. Today,
Teal’s Pond is a tourist attrac-
tion. ;

“With the mystery. unsolved
and the interest in the . case
increasing, there was a crowd
at Sand Lake to look over the
ground and see the pond
where Hazel Drew’s body was
found,” our reporter writes.

“All day long there was a
constant stream of visitors and
sightseers climbing the moun-
tain and the road, which is
narrow in places, was well
nigh impassable. Hundreds
walked the distance of three or
four miles from Averill Park to
the little mill pond and heard
repeated over and over again
the story of the girl’s death.

“The spot was well trodden
on which her hat lay when
found and every inch of the
shore of the little lake was

trampled down by footsteps of
those who manifested a curios-
ity to take in all that the scene
offered.”

Meanwhile, investigators
have spent the weekend rifling
through garbage. They’re por-
ing through the rubbish pile at
the home of Prof. E.. R. Cary,
where Drew was a live-in maid
until quitting on July 6.

“It was thought that Hazel
may have thrown away some
letters or postals [i.e. post-
cards] before she left the
employ of the Carys, and the
result was not fruitless,” our
writer notes, “Refuse that had
been thrown away and was

‘ready to be burned was care-

fully sifted and separated.

“There was disclosed a few
more of Hazel’s friends. Scraps
of letters were found and a
postal card that had been torn
in two were obtained. These
were collected, pasted togeth-
er, and from -them several
names of her former friends
brought to light.”

District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien that learning more
about Drew’s acquaintances
will explain her movements on
July 6 and July 7.

He knows that Drew intend-
ed to go to Watervliet on the
6th, but was back in Troy on

the 7th to leave her suitcase at
Union Station.

She was last seen alive on
the evening of the 7th, picking
raspberries near the Taborton
road. : :

It was previously thought
that- Drew was headed for an
uncle’s house near Teal’s Pond,
but the uncle, William Taylor,
says he wasn’t expecting a
visit.

Our own pages may contain
a clue to Drew’s itinerary.

Special Officer . John F.
Murnane, attached to the dis-
trict attorney’s office, found
the following classified ad in
The Record’s July 6 issue:
“Wanted - Girl for general
housework to go to Sandlake
for summer; references
required. Box 21, Record.”

“This advertisement may
account, it is thought, for
Hazel’s taking a trip to Averill
Park, which is in the town of
Sandlake, on Tuesday, July 7,7
our report concludes. i

It can’t account for why she
was seen wandering at night
through a popular area for
campers, which neighbors did-
n’t consider safe for a young
woman traveling alone.

-- Kevin Gilbert



‘Monday, July 20, 1908. On
the evening of July 7 Mr. and
Mrs. - William - Hoffey saw a
horse and wagon parked near

Teal’
!
wa nd a man by the
pond. Were they the murder-
ers of Hazel Drew?

The Hoffeys’ story, coming
to light more than a week
after Drew’s body was pulled
from Teal’s Pond, “is consid-
ered of.great importance by
the district attorney’s oifice,”
The Record reports, “every
effort is now being put forth to
ascertain the identity of the
two men.”

Drew, a 20 year old Troy
woman, is believed to have

Pond in Sand Lake.

| died on the night of July 7.

An autopsy indicated that
she died from a blunt-object

blow to the back of her head.

That finding compelled

investigators to treat the Drew

story as a murder case, but as
several trails of clues have led
nowhere, they’ve found them-
selves questioning the autop-
Sy.

“1t would have been accept-
ed by us as a suicide had not
the doctors agreed that death
had taken place before the

' body entered the water,” dis-

trict attorney. Jarvis P..O’Brien

s a man in the

tells our reporter this morn-

ing. The autopsy, he adds, is
the only real justification for
the current murder investiga-
tion. :

Autopsies have been wrong
sometimes, O’Brien concedes,
but he’s unwilling to doubt
the doctors in the Drew case.
«] cannot accept suicide,
because of the doctors’ state-
ment,” he insists.

Later today, O’Brien learns
of the Hoffeys’ story.

They’re farmers who live
three miles from Teal’s Pond
and were riding home from
Troy around 7:30 p.m. on July
7.

In a roundabout way, they
recount their trip, including
an encounter .with Frank

Smith and Rudolph
Gunderman, who reported
seeing Drew in the area

around the same time.
“After we passed Smith and
Gunderman we drove down
into the hollow and then
passed through the hollow,”
William Hoffey says, “As we
came to the hill leading up
past Teal’s pond I gave the
reins to my wife and got out
and walked.
“Well, as | was walking up
the hill a few feet ahead of the
_ horse, I noticed ahead of me,

partially pulled out of the road
on the pond side, a horse and
runabout facing  toward
Crape’s hotel.

“In the runabout was a
man, and as our rig neared
him, he pulled further to the
side of the road to let us pass.

“After we got past we looked
in the direction of the pond,
because the fellow pulled his
horse over on -that side and
stopped him again, and we
naturally thought there must

. be someone over in there for

whom he was waiting.

«Over in the bushes on the
shore of the pond, we saw a
fellow walking about, brush-
ing the bushes back with his
arm and acting as though he
was looking for something.

“] couldn’t tell how he
looked, for it was about half
past seven and was getting
dusk, but he had on a light
colored shirt.”

“Why they did not come to
the front with their tale before
the police cannot conceive,”
our reporter notes, “except
that they did not wish to gain
the notoriety resultant from
the sensation which their
statement is sure to occasion.”

-- Kevin Gilbert

b
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Tuesday, July 21, 1908.
Another day brings another
lead in the Hazel Drew murder
investigation, The
reports, as “what is thought to
be important to-day may be
declared unimportant 'to-mor-
row.”

Investigatois appear no clos-
er to solving the mystery of
Drew’s fate on the night of
July 7.

The 20 year old domestic
servant was found dead in
Teal’s Pond in Sand Lake on
July 11.

An autopsy determined that
Drew was killed by a blow to

her head, while detectives pre-

sume that her Kkiller or killers
dumped the body into the
pond to- make it look like

Préw had dtowned.i> 4rchisin

<77A significant clue seemed to

emerge yesterday wh I
and Mrs. William Hoffey
- reported that they had seen a

Record -wagon and:two men at Teal’s

Pond near the time that Drew
was last seen alive on July 7.
They did not see Drew herself
during their ride.

Why did the Hoffeys take so
long to take their story to
investigators!?

William. Hoffey attempts to

~ explain himself today.

In an interview with our
paper, the farmer says that he
remembered the wagon when
he first heard of Drew’s death.
Once it was reported that

Drew had been murdered,

Hoffey suspected that the men
in the wagon might be the
murderers.
mcﬁia_mn
i

who %w it, and they hear we

‘they” are” the* ‘ones’

£ toldit, they may some time get

a chance at me and injure
me,” he remembers thinking.

Putting it more strongly, he
remembers thinking to him-
self, “If 1 tell that, one of ‘em
may see me coming home
some night and blow my head
off.”

Hoffey’s fears may have
been unjustified. What he saw
“may now turn out to be a
journey of two men seeking
live bait in the shallow water
near the edge of the pond,”
our reporter speculates,
“There is a market for live bait
at the big lakes in that vicini-
ty where fishermen are
many.” :

During the interview, Hoffey
contradicts comments by

Prew’s uncle, Williamp Taylor,

he never associates with
women.

Hoffey recalls seeing Taylor
with a “young like” woman in
Averill Park five weeks ago.

While he claims that he’s
never seen Hazel Drew, Hoffey
says “I think I might” be able
to identify her as the woman
in Taylor’s wagon.

Taylor lives near Teal’s
Pond. Investigators initially
suspected that Drew was on
her way to visit him, but
Taylor told them he wasn’t
expecting any visits at the
time.

Meanwhile, Taylor’s sister
Minnie, Hazel’s aunt and fre-
quent companion, gets anoth-
er grilling from district attor-
ney Jarvis P. O’Brien in the

grand jury chamber of the,

who has told investigators that. . county. courthouse. .

TR

She’s acquired unwanted
celebrity due to her role in the
case.

“She was taken in to the
[chamber] through the private
entrance to avoid the score of
newspaper men,” our writer
explains, “When she left the
building it was down the back
stairs through the janitor’s
apartment and out the base-
ment.

“Her exit was designed to
escape the aim of the photog-
raphers, but it was unsuccess-
ful ... Miss Taylor did the best
she could to avoid the cam-
eras, and covered her face, but
what is called ‘team work’ in
New York among the snapshot
men succeeded here.”

__ Kevin Gilbert



Wednesday, July 22, 1908.
The Hazel Drew murder investi-
gation now extends into Maine

as detectives discover an
exchange of letters between the
deceased woman and a
Waterville family, The Record
reports. :

sometime on the night of July 7.
Her body was pulled from Teal’s
Pond in Sand Lake on July 11.
The murder investigation began
after an autopsy determined that
Drew had not drowned, but had
died from a blow to the back of
her head.

As the investigation contin-
ues, the doctors who performed
the autopsy seem to be backing
off from their earlier assertion
that Drew was murdered. Their
reticence emerges- today at a
conference with district attorney
Jarvis P. O’Brien, who wants to
know whether Drew’s. body
should be exhumed and re-
examined.

The conference starts two
hours late as O’Brien’s automo-
bile breaks down twice on the
way to Sand Lake. Afterwards,
O’Brien tells reporters that
there’s no reason to exhume the
body. The doctors have told him
that a new examination would
add nothing to the original
autopsy results. Vainy it

Drew is believed to have died

Asked whether the doctors
“still maintain it was murder,”
O’Brien answers, “They say the
life was extinct before the body
was thrown. or fell into the
water.”

As our reporter notes, “The
doctors would not declare that
the girl was murdered. They
would not -state that she was
struck with a club on the head.
They said distinctly that there
was a wound on the back of the
head, sufficient to cause death.
How it was inflicted they did not
say iy
- Meanwhile, detectives are
picking through more of Drew’s
belongings provided by her
aunt, Minnie Taylor. The most
intriguing so far are letters from
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Jones of
Waterville, ME.

In one letter, Mrs. Jones, a for-
mer Troy resident, “asked Hazel
to tell her husband ... that he
should not forget that he had a
wife in Waterville.”

More recently, on July 16,
Mrs. Jones wrote to Minnie
Taylor to assure her that she
would destroy all her correspon-
dence with Drew, except for
three postcards that “could hurt
no one.”

A request for further informa-
tion about the Joneses gets an

~alarming response: Frank Jones-

has been missing and hunted by
the Waterville police since last
Saturday, July 18.

In a separate development,
Detective Duncan C. Kaye is try-
ing to determine the identity of a
young man whose photograph
was found in Drew’s suitcase,
which she left at Union Station
on the afternoon of July 7. The
picture, taken in Troy, shows a
person “well proportioned,
[with] a round face and light
complexion, with sandy hair.”
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Thursday, July 23, 1908.
“Orgies in a camp on the
mountains back of Teal Pond
may play an important part in
Hazel Drew’s death,” The
Record reports.

A century later, it’s hard to
write a better lead than that.

Drew’s body was pulled
from Teal’s Pond in Sand Lake
on July 11.

The 20 year old Troy woman
was allegedly killed by a blow
to her head sometime on the
night of July 7.

Investigators suspect that
someone dumped Drew’s body
in the pond to make it appear
that she had drowned acciden-
tally or killed herself.

District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien hasn’t yet -found a
credible suspect, but detec-

tives have pieced together
Drew’s family and social rela-
tionships tobetter understand
her movements. after she left
the employ of Professor E. R.
Cary on the morning of July 6.

Inside a suitcase that Drew
left at Union Station on the
afternoon of July 7 was a pho-
tograph of a young man.
County Detective Duncan C.
Kaye has identified the man as
F.W. Schiafflin of Albany.

“Mr. Schiafflin stated that he
first met Hazel Drew three
years ago a the skating rink at
Rensselaer Park,” our reporter
notes, “Hazel seemed to be a
jolly, good-natured girl, he
said, and he enjoyed her com-
pany.

“He took her to her home
that night, and she invited

him to call, which he did sev-
eral times.”

“Hazel appeared to be a lady
in every respect, and I always
treated her as such,” Schiafflin
tells Detective Kaye.

He hasn’t seen her in the
last two years, however, and

he doesn’t remember giving-

her a photograph.

“The friendship between
them had gradually died out,
he said, though for no particu-
lar reason,” our writer
explains.

While Schiafflin may prove to
be a dead end, today’s other
lead is at least more sensational.

Special Officer William
Powers learns about the camp-
ground “on the mountains
beyond Alps” during another
search of the Taborton area

near Teal’s Pond.

The camp “can be reached
from Teal’s Pond by taking the
road to Glass Lake and then
on, passing Brown’s hotel at
Crookd Lake, and wup the
Stephentown Heights,” our
reporter relates.

Mr. and Mrs. William
Clifford live near the camp.

Mrs. Clifford tells Powers
that on the night of July 6 or
July 7, she was awakened by
“the screams of a woman.”

“She says she called her
husband and said to him, ‘You
had better get up; they are
liable to be killing that young
girl over there.

“Her husband got up, but
the screaming had ceased, and
he did not leave the house.”

While the Cliffords are

reportedly disgruntled ex-
employees of the campground,
“the camp has invited notori-
ety” from other sources.

Two years ago, two Albany
girls emerged from the camp
“scantily dressed,” one “clad
solely in a rubber overcoat.”
Other girls have allegedly
been “detained” there, though
telephone lines enabled them
to call for help.

Investigators will want Mrs.
Clifford to recall exactly when
she heard the woman’s
screams.

Hazel Drew is not known to
have been in the area on the
night of July 6, but was seen
nearby on July 7 by the last
people known to have seen

her alive.
— Kevin Gilbert
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Friday, July 24, 1908.
Investigators in the Hazel Drew
murder case are tracing auto-
mobiles that drove through the
area near Teal’s Pond in Sand
Lake around the time she was

< The Record

reports.

Drew’s bodv was pulled from
the pond on July 11. She was
last seen alive on the evening of
July 7. Several witnesses report
seeing her that-evening on the
Taborton Road near the pond,
but detectives remain uncertain
of where she actually died.

District Attorney Jarvis P.
O’Brien is still working on the
theory that Drew may have
been carried to Teal’s Pond after
she was Kkilled. Suspicions rose
when witnesses reported seeing
a wagon near the pond on the
night of July 7, but investiga-
tors now believe that the men in
the wagon were gathering live
bait for sale to local fishermen.

O’Brien’s team continues to

pursue: any lead involving a-

vehicle passing through the
‘area. At one point last week
they speculated that Drew may
have been killed accidentally by
an auto, the driver of which
might have dumped her in the
pond to conceal his responsibil-
ity.

They’re now interested in fig-

uring out
Christopher Crape saw an auto-
mobile pass by his hotel on

~ Taborton mountain. Crape had

earlier told mvestzgators that he
saw a car on the night of July 3.
He now says “he never told the
exact date that the machine
passed his hotel and he did not
intend to until the proper time
arrived.”

Crape’s cryptic cemment
new accepted as being fm'ther
evidence that the authorities
have been working on a clue
and concealing their efforts in
this dlrectlon, our reporter
writes.

The car Crape saw has been
identified as one belonging to
Alexander Kramroth, an Albany
furniture dealer. O’Brien does-
n’t appear to consider Kramroth
a suspect, since he doubts that

anyone would drive a touring

car over Taborton. Nor does he
seem to consider Crape’s
account significant, since he
notes that someone could drive
from the Alps campground, a
current focus of investigation,
to Teal’s Pond without passing
Crape’s hotel.

Today’s Record reported
increased interest in the Alps
camp, which has a local reputa-
tion as an area where young

women shouldn’t go alone, or

exactly when

as our writer puts it, “where
purity and virtue are held but
lightly.”

Investigators will intensify
their efforts at the camp follow-
ing O’Brien’s conference with
Sheriff J. Irving Baucus “this
morning. “While the camp in-
question may have ne direct
bearing on the murder of Hazel
Drew,” our reporter notes, “the
place will be investigated and
its true character known.”
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Saturday, July 25, 1908. The
latest person of interest in the
Hazel Drew murder investiga-
tion is a Pullman car employee
who may have sent anonymous
postcards to .the victim, The
Record reports. , ,

A young woman’s body was
pulled from Teal’s Pond in Sand
Lake two weeks ago. After an
autopsy determined that the
woman died from a blow to the
head rather than from drown-
ing, she was identified as 20-
year-old Hazel Drew of Troy, a
domestic servant who had quit
her most recent position- on
July 6. :

“Since the girl’s body was
discovered: and her belongings
inspected the district attorney
and his men have been trying to
establish the identity of the
man who had sent anonymous
postals and letters to the girl,”
our reporter writes. -

“While the messages were
unsigned one of them gave rise
to the positive belief that who-
ever sent them had been at
some period employed as a
waiter.”

Samuel LeRoy of 1621
Seventh Ave. once worked as a
waiter in a Sand Lake hotel. He
later worked in the dining room
of the Mansion House hotel in

Kecend 1125708

Troy, and currently works on

Pullman sleeping cars running.

between Albany and New York
City. Acquaintances of his have
reportedly informed investiga-
tors that LeRoy had told them
that he knew Hazel Drew.

At the very least, District

Attorney Jarvis P. O’Brien has

to hope that LeRoy can throw
light on Drew’s movements
between the time she left work
on the morning of July 6 and
the evening of July 7, when she
was last seen alive on the
Taborton road.

O’Brien summons LeRoy to
his office for “rigid” questioning
today. Asked to account for his
whereabouts on July 6 and 7,
LeRoy explains that he worked
the Albany-New York run from
noon to 3:45.on the 6th, stayed
overnight at a boarding house,
and returned to .Albany at 5:50
a.m. on the 7th.

LeRoy and his wife were
invited to attend a card party on

the night of July 7, but spent .

that night at home when the
hostess rescheduled the event
for the following night. He
spent the crucial night “lying
on the couch.”

In a separate interview,
LeRoy’s wife corroborates her
husband’s work schedule and

his story of the thwarted card
party. Afterward, LeRoy meets
the press.

In our reporter’s opinion,
LeRoy “established an alibi that
could not be shaken or disput-
ed. He told a story that was
accepted as being . straightfor-
ward and honest ... [proving]
beyond any doubt that he had
no connection with the case
whatever.” -

As for whether he sent the
postcard that brought investiga-
tors to his door, LeRoy “told the
district attorney that he did not
know the girl.”

O’Brien hasn’t shared - his
opinion of LeRoy with the
press, but our reporter clearly
believes that the Drew investi-
gation ‘has reached another
dead end.
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Monday, July 27, 1908. A
coroner’s inquest beginning
today may determine whether
the county continues its investi-
gation into the alleged murder
of Hazel Drew, The Record
reports.

Some critics have suggested
that the inquest should have

taken place weeks ago, well,

before District Attorney Jarvis P,
O’Brien began a sweeping
investigation that has led
nowhere so far. Drew’s body
was pulled from Teal’s Pond in
Sand Lake on July 11. An autop-
sy on July 12 determined that
she died from a blow to the
back of her head, not from
drowning.

More than two weeks later,
the inquest opens at Wager’s
Hotel in Averill Park.

“The room where the investi-
gation was begun is one not
lacking in promises,” our
reporter comments, “It is one
where promises have been
made by campaign orators, big

and little. It is one where the

summer boarders in Averill
Park have danced until dawn
and wished that daybreak
might be deferred.

“To-day it was a death that
threw its shadow over the
building that more often has
vibrated with laughter and

song....Long before - Coroner
Stroup ascended the platform
the room was wedged with a
human throng, not witnesses -
just those who wanted to hear
more of the girl’s death story. It
was one of the most important
investigations ever held in
Rensselaer County.”

Most eyes are on two persons
of interest in the investigation.
William Taylor, Drew’s uricle,
lives near Teal’s Pond but did
not see her in the area on July 6
or7.

Frank Smith is one of the last
people to see Drew alive on the
evening of the 7th. His age, not
to mention his innocence,
remains-subject ‘to dispute.

Before the hearing, Taylor
“appeared to see no one; with
his feet crossed he sat alone
looking at the floor.” Smith,
“though but seventeen years of
age, has a growth of hair on his
upper lip, and to add to the con-
trast of his age as compared
with that of other seventeen-
year-old boys he was smoking a
cigar.” Geiieae

The first witnesses are the
campers who first discovered
Drew’s body in the pond.
Lorenzo Gruber and George
White - first mnotified Gilbert
Miller, who was wrongly credit-
ed with finding the body in

early reports.

‘Teal’s Pond belongs to Conrad
Teal, who “lives near enough to
the water to hear shooting or
any noise that might be made
there.”

He testifies that he heard
noises there on July 4, but not
on the day when Drew is
believed to have died.

Frank Smith testifies for half
an hour under “rigid examina-
tion” by District Attorney Jarvis
P. O’Brien.

“His answers were direct and
he never hesitated in respond-
ing,” our reporter notes.

The others who saw Drew on
July 7 also testify, including
farmer William Hoffey, who
claims to have- seen two men
and a wagon parked near the
pond that evening.

O’Brien asks if one of the
people Hoffey saw might have
been a woman. .

“If it was a woman she had
pants on,” Hoffey answers.

“You could tell if it was a
woman, could you not?”
O’Brien continues.

“I would have to be very
drunk not to,” Hoffey confirms.

Testimony at the inquest will
resume on July 30. - -

— Kevin Gilbert






HAZEL DREW INVESTIGA-
TION. During a pause in the
coroner’s inquest into the death
of Hazel Drew, district attorney
Jarvis P. O’Brien continues to
pursue potential murder sus-

The 20-year-old Drew, a Troy

woman, was found dead in
Teal’s Pond, Sand Lake, on July
11. An autopsy’s determination
that she died from a blow to the
head, rather than from drown-
ing, sparked the present investi-
gation.

O’Brien dispatches two spe-
cial officers back to Taborton
mountain, near Teal’s Pond, to
interview the family of Michael
Sowalsky. “The boy is said to
bossess a temper not gentle,
and it was also declared that he
knew Hazel Drew,” our reporter
notes. ‘

¢ As it turns out, “he did not
know Hazel, had never seen
her, and the night that she was
last seen on the road he was at
home in bed, ill,” according to

In other words, “the expected
happened,” and “another name
is drawn into the tragedy that
has no connection with the case
direct or indirect,” our writer
scoffs.
~ Even more frustrating to
Investigators and reporters is a
rumor that “Mrs. Drew, Hazel’s
mother, had attributed her
daughter’s death to a hypnotic
spell which had been cast over
her.” B

O’Brien openly laughs at this
story, which Mrs. Drew denies.

“While the Drews are not
people of wealth their sur-
roundings are dignified,” our
reporter clarifies, “and  the
mother of the girl is careful in
all her statements.” -

pects, our paper reparts. "
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Thursday, July 30, 1908. The
coroner’s inquest into the death
of Hazel Drew moves from
Averill Park to Troy today, giv-
ing a new set of curiosity seek-
ers a chance to look at some of
the main characters in the
story, The Record reports.

The inquest began last
Monday, July 27, in the dance
hall at Wager’s Hotel. Hazel
Drew’s body was pulled from
Teal’s Pond in Sand Lake on
July 11. An autopsy the follow-
| ing day determined that she
| died from a blow to the back of
her head.

Over the two days between
hearings, investigators led by
district attorney- Jarvis P.
O’Brien hunted for new leads,
but found nothing to bring’
them any closer to determining
who might have killed Drew on
the night of July 7. She was last
seen alive on the Taborton road
near Teal’s Pond earlier that
evening.

This morning’s hearing con-
venes at the county court
house. “There was a number of
spectators,” our reporter
observes, “more interested in
catching a glimpse at the promi-
nent witnesses than they were
to listening to the testimony
adduced.”

The first witness called is

Drew’s last employer, Professor
E.R. Cary. She went to work in
his household as a domestic
servant last February, and quit
on July 6. Cary testifies that
Drew left of her own accord,
but can’t account for her
whereabouts over the preceding
weekend. )

A name new to the public
among the witnesses is
Jeannette Marcellus. She is the
person who saw Drew in down-
town’s Union Station on the
afternoon of July 7. Her infor-
mation led to the discovery of
Drew’s suitcase in the Union
Stdtion baggage check depart-
ment. She has little to add to
that story today apart from
identifying herself.

Some of the most anticipated
testimony comes from Hazel’s
mother, - Mrs. John Drew. Her
account is telling for how little
she knew of her daughter’s
activities in recent years, during
which Hazel “did not make a
confidant of other members of
the family.” She tells the inquest
that she last saw Hazel at home
on July 2, and had no inkling
that Hazel was going to leave
her job with Professor Cary.

Coroner M.H. Strope hoped to
hear from Drew’s close friend
Carrie Weaver today, but her
expected arrival in Troy follow-

ing a vacation in Ohio has been
delayed until next Saturday.
Weaver was Drew’s companion
on several recent trips, includ-
ing a Memorial Day jaunt to
New York City, and might have
more information on Drew’s
recent affairs.

As things now stand, the
inquest is likely to conclude
tomorrow  without hearing
from Weaver. after today’s testi-
mony proves “not a revelation
of anything not heretofore
given out by the witnesses.”




* ‘Friday, July 31, 1908. In a
possibly crippling blow to the
Hazel Drew murder investiga-
tion, a coroner’s inquest has
failed to affirm that Drew died by
foul play, The Record reports.

Hazel Drew was a 20-year old
Troy woman who worked as a
domestic servant in several area
households. She' quit her. posi-
tion in the home of Professor
E.R.. Cary on Monday, July 6.
She was last seen alive on the
Taborton road on the evening of
July 7. Her dead body was
pulled from Teal’s Pond in Sand
Lake on July 11.

An autopsy performed on July
12 determined that Drew was
killed by a blow to the back of
her head. That ruling fueled
speculation that Drew had been
murdered, then dumped into the
pond to make her death look like
an accident or suicide. District
Attorney Jarvis P. O’Brien
launched a sweeping investiga-
tion in the hope that people who
knew Drew could help detectives

trace her movements on July 6

and 7.

The investigation was already
two weeks old before the cor-
ner’s inquest held its first hear-
ing last Monday. O’Brien’s office
was bombarded with letters
offering potential clues or identi-
fying potential suspects, all of

which have led nowhere so far.
In our own reporter’s opinion,
the inquest has shed no new
light on the case. :

In an opinion published today,

Rensselaer County coroner M.H..

Strope states that Drew “came to
her death from extravasation of

blood in the durameter caused

by a blow on the head from
some blunt instrument in some
manner unknown.”

In other words, Hazel Drew
died from bleeding in the brain,
but no one knows how it hap-
pened. :

As if anticipating Strope’s ver-
dict, O’Brien has recalled special
officers Louis Unser and William
Powers from Taborton mountain,

where they’ve been conducting
the investigation. for nearly three

weeks.
- “While work has not ceased
altogether there will be a cessa-
tion of direct searching for fur-
ther clews in the vicinity where
the supposed crime was commit-
ted,” our reporter explains.

County Detective Duncan C.
Kaye tells reporters that “the
investigation into the death of
the girl has not been abandoned,
but would be continued indefi-
nitely.”

While some officers have been
taken off the case, Kaye adds,
“certain circumstances would be
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investigated.” The  §1,000
reward . offered by Sheriff J.
Irving. Baucus for information
leading to the arrest of Drew’s

. presumptive murderer remains

in effect.

Despite reassurances, our
reporter believes that “possibly
the last chapter to the tragedy of
Hazel Irene Drew was written
this morning” by Coroner Strope.

“The case will go-down into
history as an unselved problem,
unless by accident something
develops that may throw some
light on it.”
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